
Note:  All items appearing on the agenda are subject to action by the Board.  Staff recommendations are subject to change by the Board. 

 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
PENINSULA CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS BOARD 

Bacciocco Auditorium, 2nd Floor 

1250 San Carlos Avenue, San Carlos CA 94070 

 

August 4, 2016 – Thursday 10:00 a.m. 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance  

2. Call to Order/Roll Call  

3. Public Comment 
Public comment by each individual speaker shall be limited to two minutes 

 

4. Consent Calendar 
Members of the public or Board may request that an item under the Consent Calendar be 

considered separately 

a) Approval of Minutes of July 7, 2016 

b) Information on Statement of Revenues and Expenses for 

June 2016 

c) Authorize Approval and Ratification of the Fiscal Year 2017 

Insurance Program at a Total Premium Cost Not To Exceed 

$4,465,147 

RESOLUTION 

5. Chairperson’s Report 

a) Resolution of Appreciation to Chuck Harvey, Deputy CEO 

 

RESOLUTION 

6. Report of the Citizens Advisory Committee INFORMATIONAL 

7. Report of the Executive Director 

a) Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project Quarterly Update 

 

INFORMATIONAL 

8. Key Caltrain Performance Statistics June 2016 INFORMATIONAL 

9. Authorize Entering into a Memorandum of Understanding with the 

San Francisco Municipal Transit Agency to Jointly Fund Last-Mile 

Shuttle Service for the San Francisco Caltrain Station Terminal for 

an Estimated Annual Not-to-Exceed Cost of $250,000 

RESOLUTION 

10. Authorize Adoption of Mitigated Negative Declaration and 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan and Approval of 

South Terminal Phase II Project 

RESOLUTION 

11. Authorize Amendment to the Investment Policy and 

Reauthorization to Invest Monies with the Local Agency 

Investment Fund 

RESOLUTIONS 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2016 

 

PERRY WOODWARD, CHAIR 

JOSÉ CISNEROS, VICE CHAIR 

MALIA COHEN 

JEFF GEE 

ROSE GUILBAULT 

RAUL PERALEZ 

JOÉL RAMOS 

ADRIENNE TISSIER 

KEN YEAGER 

 

JIM HARTNETT 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

 



Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board 

August 4, 2016 Agenda 

 

Note: All items appearing on the agenda are subject to action by the Board.  Staff recommendations are subject to change by the Board. 

 

Page 2 of 4 

12. Caltrain Fare Policy Study Overview INFORMATIONAL 

13. Metropolitan Transportation Commission Transit Sustainability 

Program Progress Update 

INFORMATIONAL 

14. Lesbian, Gay, Bi-Sexual, Transgender Business Enterprise Program 

Presentation 

INFORMATIONAL 

15. Legislative Update INFORMATIONAL 

16. Correspondence  

17. Board Member Requests  

18. Date/Time of Next Regular Meeting:  Thursday, September 1, 2016, 

10 a.m. at San Mateo County Transit District Administrative 

Building, Bacciocco Auditorium, 2nd Floor, 1250 San Carlos 

Avenue, San Carlos, CA  94070 

 

19. General Counsel Report 

a) Closed Session:  Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing 

Litigation Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1):  

Town of Atherton, et al vs. Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers 

Board.  Case No. CIV532457 

b) Closed Session: Conference with Real Property Negotiators 

Joan L. Cassman, General Counsel, Elizabeth Scanlon, 

Manager, Caltrain Planning, pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54956.8:   

Under negotiation: Price and terms of contract. 

 

 

Property Location Owner APN JPB Parcel # 

823 Arguello St. 

Redwood City, CA 94063 

Longview Trust 

 

052-272-070 

 

JPB-SM2-0130 

 

911 Arguello St. 

Redwood City, CA 94063 

Spencer 1995 

Living Trust 

052-272-030 

052-272-040 

JPB-SM2-0128 

 

1300 Old County Rd. 

Belmont, CA 94002 

Cohn Family Living 

Trust 

045-241-240 

 

JPB-SM2-0119 

 

701 Harbor Blvd.  

Belmont, CA 94002 

Harbor Service 

Station, LLC 

045-246-130 

 

JPB-SM2-0123 

 

801 Arguello St. 

Redwood City, CA 94063 

Masetti Trust 

 

052-272-100 

 

JPB-SM2-0132 

 

797 Arguello St. 

Redwood City, CA 94063 

May Trust 

Agreement 

052-272-110 

 

JPB-SM2-0133 

 

923 Arguello St. 

Redwood City, CA 94063 

Robert Mahony 

Trust 

052-272-010 

 

JPB-SM2-0126 

 
 

 



Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board 

August 4, 2016 Agenda 

 

Note: All items appearing on the agenda are subject to action by the Board.  Staff recommendations are subject to change by the Board. 

 

Page 3 of 4 

 

Property Location Owner APN JPB Parcel # 

1306, 1308 Old County 

Rd. 

Belmont, CA 94002 

Ezzat Family 1999 

Revocable Trust 

 

045-241-130 

 

JPB-SM2-0120 

 

700 Harbor Blvd.  

Belmont, CA 94002 

Klopocki Bogdan 

 

045-241-170 

 

JPB-SM2-0122 

 

1125 Arguello St.  

Redwood City, CA 94063 

T.B.T. Investments 

 

052-252-090 

 

JPB-SM2-0124 

 

1003 Arguello St.  

Redwood City, CA 94063 

Tawasha 

Investments, LLC 

052-252-050 

 

JPB-SM2-0125 

 

919 Arguello St. 

Redwood City, CA 94063 

Arguello 919 

 

052-272-020 

 

JPB-SM2-0127 

 

1020 Old County Rd.  

Belmont, CA 94002 

Kirberg Motors Inc. 

 

040-331-030 

 

JPB-SM2-0116 

 

899 Arguello St. 

Redwood City,  CA 94063 

Craig P Duling/ 

Mary Ellen Gaston 

052-272-180 

 

JPB-SM2-0129 

 

817 Arguello St. 

Redwood City, CA 94063 

Chavez Family 

Revocable Trust 

052-272-080 

052-272-090 

JPB-SM2-0131 

 

1030 Old County Rd. 

Belmont, CA 94002 

Traverso Living 

Family Trust 

040-331-040 

 

JPB-SM2-0117 

 

1350 Old County Rd.  

Belmont, CA 94002 

Brutsche Family 

Revocable Trust 

045-241-210  

045-241-160 

JPB-SM2-0121 

 

1080 Old County Rd.  

Belmont, CA 94002 

Chariot Unlimited, 

LLC 

040-331-050 

 

JPB-SM2-0118 

 
    

 

20. Adjourn  

 



Page 4 of 4 

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 

 

All items appearing on the agenda are subject to action by the Board.  Staff 

recommendations are subject to change by the Board. 

 

If you have questions on the agenda, please contact the JPB Secretary at 650.508.6242.  

Agendas are available on the Caltrain website at www.caltrain.com.  Communications 

to the Board of Directors can be e-mailed to board@caltrain.com.  

Location, Date and Time of Regular Meetings 

Regular meetings are held at the San Mateo County Transit District Administrative 

Building located at 1250 San Carlos Avenue, San Carlos, one block west of the  

San Carlos Caltrain Station on El Camino Real, accessible by SamTrans bus Routes ECR, 

FLX, 260, 295 and 398.   Additional transit information can be obtained by calling 

1.800.660.4287 or 511. 

 

The JPB meets regularly on the first Thursday of the month at 10 a.m.  The JPB Citizens 

Advisory Committee meets regularly on the third Wednesday of the month at 5:40 p.m. 

at the same location.  Date, time and place may change as necessary. 

 

Public Comment 

If you wish to address the Board, please fill out a speaker’s card located on the agenda 

table and hand it to the JPB Secretary.  If you have anything that you wish distributed to 

the Board and included for the official record, please hand it to the JPB Secretary, who 

will distribute the information to the Board members and staff. 

 

Members of the public may address the Board on non-agendized items under the 

Public Comment item on the agenda.  Public testimony by each individual speaker 

shall be limited to two minutes and items raised that require a response will be deferred 

for staff reply. 

 

Accessibility for Individuals with Disabilities 

Upon request, the JPB will provide for written agenda materials in appropriate 

alternative formats, or disability-related modification or accommodation, including 

auxiliary aids or services, to enable individuals with disabilities to participate in public 

meetings.  Please send a written request, including your name, mailing address, phone 

number and brief description of the requested materials and a preferred alternative 

format or auxiliary aid or service at least two days before the meeting.  Requests should 

be mailed to the JPB Secretary at Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board, 

1250 San Carlos Avenue, San Carlos, CA 94070-1306; or emailed to 

board@caltrain.com; or by phone at 650.508.6242, or TDD 650.508.6448. 

 

Availability of Public Records 

All public records relating to an open session item on this agenda, which are not 

exempt from disclosure pursuant to the California Public Records Act, that are 

distributed to a majority of the legislative body will be available for public inspection at 

1250 San Carlos Avenue, San Carlos, CA 94070-1306, at the same time that the public 

records are distributed or made available to the legislative body. 

file://SamTrans.com/Departments/Executive/J%20P%20B/Agendas/2013/www.caltrain.com
mailto:board@caltrain.com
mailto:board@caltrain.com






























Joint Powers Board Meeting 

Minutes of July 7, 2016 

 

Page 15 of 15 

Closed Session: Conference with Real Property Negotiators Joan L. Cassman, General 

Counsel, Brian W. Fitzpatrick, Manager, Real Estate and Property Development, and 

Gary Cardona, Senior Real Estate Officer, pursuant to Government Code Section 

54956.8: Under negotiation: Price and terms of contract. 

Property Location Owner APN JPB Parcel # 

101 E. 25th Avenue,  

San Mateo, CA 94403 

Bay Meadows Real 

Estate, LLC 
039-081-020 JPB-SM-0033 

2825 S. El Camino Real, 

San Mateo, CA 94403 

Nathaniel 

Schmelzer Trust 
039-351-110 JPB-SM-0043 

2833 S. El Camino Real, 

San Mateo, CA 94403 

UM-RO Enterprises, 

Inc. 
039-351-120 JPB-SM-0044 

2837 S. El Camino Real, 

San Mateo, CA 94403 
Donoian Trust 

039-351-130 

(SBE 7775-41-1) 

JPB-SM-0045 

JPB-SM-0046 

 

Reconvened to open session at 12:08 p.m. 

 

Ms. Cassman said the Board has met on the two closed session real property 

negotiations.  The board received reports and appropriate authorization was given.  

There is no action to report. 

 

 

Adjourned at 12:09 p.m. 



 AGENDA ITEM # 4 (b) 

 AUGUST 4, 2016 

 

PENINSULA CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS BOARD 

STAFF REPORT 

 

TO: Joint Powers Board 

 

THROUGH: Jim Hartnett 

 Executive Director 

 

FROM: Eli Kay 

 Chief Financial Officer 

 

SUBJECT: INFORMATION ON STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES FOR THE PERIOD 

ENDING JUNE 30, 2016 

 

The Finance Division engages in many activities following the end of the June 30 fiscal 

year both to close out the old fiscal year and set up the new fiscal year. The demands 

of these activities require a longer time to produce a complete Statement of Revenues 

and Expenses than allowed by the normal board meeting cycle.  The auditors, 

Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., expect to finish the audit in late October.  Consequently, 

staff will present a Statement of Revenues and Expenses for June at the November 3 

meeting of the Board of Directors.  We expect to have the Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report finalized by December 2016. 

 

 

Prepared by:   Sheila Tioyao, Manager, General Ledger 650.508.7752 



Page 1 of 2 

12549194.2 

 AGENDA ITEM # 4 (c) 

 AUGUST 4, 2016 

 

PENINSULA CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS BOARD 

STAFF REPORT 

 

TO:   Joint Powers Board 

 

THROUGH: Jim Hartnett 

  Executive Director 

 

FROM:  Gigi Harrington 

  Deputy CEO/Chief Administrative Officer 

 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL AND RATIFICATION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2017 INSURANCE 

PROGRAM 

 

ACTION 

Staff Coordinating Council recommends the Board approve and ratify the Peninsula 

Corridor Joint Powers Board (JPB) insurance program for Fiscal Year (FY) 2017 at a total 

premium cost not to exceed $4,465,147, inclusive of the following: 

 

 Continue the current $1 million self-insured retention on the liability program; 

 Purchase $199 million of coverage for Railroad Liability, Commercial General 

Liability and Excess Automobile Liability, including terrorism coverage, at an 

annual premium of $3,397,547; 

 Purchase property insurance with limits of $400 million at an annual premium of 

$803,695 for real and personal property, to include Centralized Equipment 

Maintenance and Operations Facility (CEMOF), stations, tunnels, bridges, 

culverts, signals, railroad equipment, and rolling stock. This insurance also 

continues to provide coverage against terrorism, as well as boiler and machinery 

perils for real property and CEMOF sufficient to meet the State of California 

inspection requirements; 

 Purchase a $15 million Public Officials Liability policy at an annual premium of 

$118,869; 

 Purchase an annual Special Events and Emergency Drill Liability policy with a 

$2 million limit for a premium of $27,986; and 

 Purchase Railroad Protective Liability coverage at an annual premium of 

$44,941. 

 

SIGNIFICANCE 

Despite a 6 percent increase in ridership and revenues, some industry-wide hardening 

of certain liability insurance lines, and higher insurance limits on one policy, the JPB’s 

overall insurance program has increased only 3.2 percent.  The JPB was able to 

maintain a program with a $1 million self-insured retention, which greatly reduces out-

of-pocket payments on large claims.  The program is competitive and staff 

recommends maintaining the current program structure. 

 



Page 2 of 2 

12549194.2 

Property catastrophes nationwide were infrequent this past year, leading to a flat to 

softening property insurance market, particularly for good accounts such as the JPB.  

The JPB’s property values increased 14 percent, resulting in higher premiums.  JPB 

property losses remained below 25 percent, resulting in a 5 percent reduction in the 

policy rate due to the terms of a two-year program obtained last year.  The JPB added 

a two-year extension to its existing property insurance program and, as an incentive, 

underwriters agreed to reduce the rate by 5 percent next year, assuming losses stay 

below 25 percent.   

 

Limits on the JPB’s Public Officials liability program were increased from $10 million to 

$15 million, and the deductible of $75,000 remained the same. Premiums increased 

accordingly with the increase of the limit. The JPB was able to renew an annual Special 

Events liability policy with a limit of $2 million. This coverage includes a $25,000 self-

insured retention and protects the JPB during what are sometimes higher hazard 

operations for its annual special train events and Emergency Training exercises.  The JPB 

renewed its Pollution Liability program this year for a new two-year term at a slight 

reduction in the premium from FY2015. The premium is paid up front for a two-year term. 

 

Below is an overview of the JPB’s FY2016 and FY2017 premiums:  

 

Premium Element FY2016                 FY2017 

Liability: Railroad, Commercial General, Excess Automobile $3,427,592 $3,397,547 

Liability: Environmental (no premium was included for  

FY2016 and no premium will be required for FY2018),  

Public Officials, Special Events, Emergency Drill Liability, and  

Railroad Protective Liability $   154,740 $   263,905  

Property  $   743,666 $   803,695     

Totals $4,325,997 $4,465,147 

 

BUDGET IMPACT 

Estimated funds to underwrite most of the cost of the recommended program are 

included in the FY2017 Operating Budget. A mid-year budget adjustment may be 

needed to cover the remainder. 

 

BACKGROUND 

The JPB’s liability limits remain at $200 million with an additional $100 million provided by 

Transit America Services, Inc. for a total of $300 million in FY2017. This renewal program 

allows the JPB to maintain the $1 million self-insured retention.  Underwriters are 

continuing to focus on risk selection, adjusting pricing to reflect increased exposures 

and filed claims. The major driver of the higher premium is the increase in ridership over 

the past four years.   

 

 

Prepared by: Marshall Rush, Claims Administrator 650.508.7742 



Page 1 of 2 

12549253.1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 –  

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, PENINSULA CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS BOARD 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

* * * 

 

APPROVING AND RATIFYING THE INSURANCE PROGRAM FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director of the Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board 

(JPB) has approved an insurance program for Fiscal Year (FY) 2017 with premiums 

totaling $4,465,147, which program was presented to the Staff Coordinating Council 

(SCC); and  

WHEREAS, in conjunction with the expiration of the JPB’s existing insurance 

program on June 30, 2016, JPB staff renewed its insurance program for FY2017 based on 

the plan approved by the Executive Director, with the following significant elements:  

1. A self-insured retention in the amount to $1 million; 

2. Railroad Liability, Commercial General Liability and Excess Automobile 

Liability policies, including Terrorism coverage, with a total limit of 

$199 million, in excess of the $1 million self-insured retention, at an annual 

premium of $3,397,547; 

3. Property insurance, including Special Risk property policies, at an annual 

premium of $803,695 with limits of $400 million to cover real and personal 

property, including stations, the Centralized Equipment Maintenance and 

Operations Facility, tunnels, bridges, culverts, signals, railroad equipment, 

and rolling stock, as well as Boiler and Machinery insurance sufficient to meet 

the State of California inspection requirements;  

4. Public Officials Liability coverage with $15 million limits at an annual premium 

of $118,869;  



Page 2 of 2 

12549253.1 

5. Annual Special Events and Emergency Drill liability with a $2 million limit at a 

premium of $27,986; and 

6. Railroad Protective Liability coverage with an annual premium of $44,941; 

and 

WHEREAS, SCC recommends the Board of Directors approve and ratify the 

renewal of the JPB’s insurance program for FY2017, as delineated above. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board 

hereby approves and ratifies the renewal of the JPB’s insurance program for FY2017, 

including the types of coverage, limits and premiums recited above.  

Regularly passed and adopted this 4th day of August, 2016 by the following vote: 

 AYES:    

 NOES:    

 ABSENT:    

  

 Chair, Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board 

ATTEST:    

  

JPB Secretary  

 



 
 

Caltrain Modernization Program 
Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 

(PCEP) 
 

 

4th Quarter FY 2016 
Progress Report 

 
 
 
April 1, 2016 to June 30, 2016 



Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 

Funding Partners i June 30, 2016 

Funding Partners

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

FTA Core Capacity 

FTA Section 5307/5337 (Environmental / 
Pre Development only) 

FTA Section 5307/5337 (EMU only) 

Prop 1B (Public Transportation 
Modernization & Improvement Account) 

Caltrain Low Carbon Transit Operations 
Cap and Trade 

Prop 1A 

High Speed Rail Cap and Trade 

 

Carl Moyer Fund 

RM2 

RM1 

Bridge Tolls 

 

SFCTA 

 

San Mateo (SMCTA) Contribution 

SMCTA Measure A 

 

VTA Measure A 

Santa Clara (VTA) Contribution 

 

San Francisco Contribution 

 

http://www.smcta.com/smcta_com.html
http://www.smcta.com/smcta_com.html
http://www.smcta.com/smcta_com.html
http://www.smcta.com/smcta_com.html
http://www.smcta.com/smcta_com.html
http://www.smcta.com/smcta_com.html
http://www.smcta.com/smcta_com.html
http://www.smcta.com/smcta_com.html
http://www.smcta.com/smcta_com.html


Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 

 

Table of Contents ii June 30, 2016 

Table of Contents 
 

Page 

1.0 PREFACE ...................................................................................................................... 1 

2.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................ 3 

3.0 ELECTRIFICATION ....................................................................................................... 5 

4.0 ELECTRIC MULTIPLE UNITS ....................................................................................... 6 

5.0 SAFETY ......................................................................................................................... 7 

6.0 QUALITY ....................................................................................................................... 8 

7.0 SCHEDULE...................................................................................................................10 

8.0 BUDGET AND EXPENDITURES ..................................................................................11 

9.0 FUNDING ......................................................................................................................13 

10.0 RISK MANAGEMENT ...................................................................................................14 

11.0 ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE ................................................................................16 

12.0 UTILITY RELOCATION ................................................................................................16 

13.0 REAL ESTATE .............................................................................................................17 

14.0 THIRD-PARTY AGREEMENTS ....................................................................................18 

15.0 COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND OUTREACH .............................................................20 

16.0 DBE PARTICIPATION AND LABOR STATISTICS ......................................................22 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 

Table of Contents iii June 30, 2016 

List of Tables 
 

Page 

Table 6-1 Quality Assurance Audit Summary ............................................................................. 8 
Table 7-1 Schedule Status ........................................................................................................10 
Table 8-1 Electrification Budget & Expenditure Status ..............................................................11 
Table 8-2 EMU Budget & Expenditure Status ...........................................................................12 
Table 8-3 PCEP Budget & Expenditure Status ..........................................................................12 
Table 10-1 Summary of Risks ...................................................................................................15 
Table 13-1 Overview Real Estate Status ...................................................................................17 
Table 14-1 Third-Party Agreement Status .................................................................................18 
  
 

 
 

List of Figures 
 

Page 
 

Figure 9-1 Funding Plan ............................................................................................................13 
 
 
 
 
 

List of Appendices 
 

Page 
 

Appendix A – Acronyms ............................................................................................................24 
Appendix B – Schedule .............................................................................................................27 

 
 



 Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
 4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 
 

Project Summary 1 June 30, 2016 

1.0 PREFACE 

Over the last decade, Caltrain has experienced a substantial increase in ridership and 
anticipates further increases in ridership demand as the San Francisco Bay Area’s population 
grows. The Caltrain Modernization (CalMod) Program, scheduled to be implemented by 2020, 
will electrify and upgrade the performance, operating efficiency, capacity, safety, and reliability 
of Caltrain’s commuter rail service. 

The Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project (PCEP) is a key component of the CalMod 
Program and consists of converting Caltrain from diesel-hauled to Electric Multiple Unit (EMU) 
trains for service between San Francisco Station (at the intersection of Fourth and King Streets 
in San Francisco) and Tamien Station in San Jose. The project will entail the installation of new 
electrical infrastructure and the purchase of electrified vehicles. Caltrain will continue Gilroy 
service and support existing tenants. 

An electrified Caltrain will better address Peninsula commuters’ vision of an environmentally 
friendly, fast, reliable service. Electrification will modernize Caltrain and make it possible to 
increase service while offering several advantages in comparison with existing diesel power 
use, including: 

 

Improved Train Performance, Increased 
Ridership Capacity and Increased Service: 
Electrified trains can accelerate and decelerate 
more quickly than diesel-powered trains, 
allowing Caltrain to run more efficiently. In 
addition, because of their performance 
advantages, electrified trains will enable more 
frequent and/or faster train service to more 
riders. 

Increased Revenue and Reduced Fuel Cost: 
An electrified Caltrain will increase ridership 
and fare revenues while decreasing fuel costs. 

Reduced Engine Noise Emanating from 
Trains:  Noise from electrified train engines is 
measurably less than noise from diesel train 
engines. Train horns will continue to be 
required at grade crossings, adhering to 
current safety regulations. 

Improved Regional Air Quality and Reduced Greenhouse Gas Emissions: Electrified trains 
will produce substantially less corridor air pollution compared with diesel trains, even when the 
indirect emissions from electrical power generation are included. Increased ridership will reduce 
automobile usage, resulting in additional air quality benefits. In addition, the reduction of 
greenhouse gas emissions is not only good for our regional air quality, but will also help meet 
the State’s emission reduction goals. 

An electrified Caltrain system would set the stage for an enhanced, modern commuter rail 
service and for future blended California High-Speed Rail (CHSR) service. While this project will 
not include or study all infrastructure necessary to implement high-speed rail service on the 
corridor (such as CHSR maintenance facilities, station improvements, or passing tracks), the 
electrical infrastructure (such as overhead wire systems) will be compatible with later blended 
service.  



Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 

Preface 2  June 30, 2016 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page is Intentionally Left Blank   



 Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
 4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 

Project Summary 3 June 30, 2016 

2.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2016, the PCEP team continued to progress the 
project. As planned in the procurement process for the Electrification contract, an 
apparent best value proposer was selected and negotiations were initiated in April. The 
project team worked extensively to negotiate technical and commercial sections with the 
apparent best value proposer.  The negotiations were successfully completed at the end 
of June.  Staff will recommend that the Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board (JPB) 
award the Electrification contract to Balfour Beatty Infrastructure, Inc. at the JPB Board 
meeting on July 7, 2016. 

The procurement process also continued for the Electric Multiple Units (EMU) 
manufacturer. Staff began negotiations in late-April with Stadler US, Inc.  Negotiation 
discussions focused on technical exceptions and contractual / legal exceptions.  The 
project team issued a letter to Stadler on May 20, 2016 to request a proposal in 
response to negotiations.  Stadler submitted a revised proposal on June 17, 2016 after 
which negotiations were successfully completed.  Staff will recommend that the JPB 
award the EMU Vehicle contract to Stadler US, Inc. at the JPB Board meeting on July 7, 
2016.  

The Tunnel Modification project completed the preliminary design phase and will enter 
into final design in Fiscal Year 2017.  

The Central Equipment and Maintenance Operations Facility (CEMOF) modifications 
design effort is on hold at this time. The preliminary design effort has proceeded to a 
stage where detailed information from the EMU manufacturer is required to finalize the 
design. It is anticipated that the modification design efforts will resume in August. 

The PCEP team is in the process of evaluating the Master Program Schedule (MPS) in 
conjunction with responses to the Electrification and EMU RFPs. The team anticipates 
issuing a revised baseline schedule in the next quarter. 

The PCEP team meets monthly with members of the Peninsula Corridor Working Group 
(PCWG), which is comprised of staff from the agencies that signed the 2012 9-Party 
Funding MOU. In April members of the PCWG agreed to the 7-Party Regional Funding 
Supplement. Between May and June the JPB, San Mateo County Transportation 
Authority (SMCTA), Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority (VTA), Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) and the San Francisco County Transportation 
Authority (SFCTA) voted unanimously to approve the 7-Party Regional Funding 
Supplement. The San Francisco Board of Supervisors and California High-Speed Rail 
Authority (CHSRA) are expected to vote on the 7-Party Regional Funding Supplement in 
July and August.       

In addition the team continues to work towards receipt of a Core Capacity Grant from the 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The team has had positive interactions with the 
FTA and meets with the FTA’s appointed Project Management Oversight Contractor 
(PMOC) on a monthly basis. The team continues to work with the funding partners to 
secure commitments to fund the entire program. 





 Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
 4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 

Project Summary 5 June 30, 2016 

3.0 ELECTRIFICATION 

The PCEP team continued to work through the procurement steps as a result of the 
February 2016 responses to the BAFO Electrification RFP. Staff began negotiations with 
the shortlisted best value proposer in April 2016.  The team worked extensively to 
negotiate technical and commercial sections with the apparent best value proposer. Staff 
successfully completed negotiations at the end of June.  The team issued a staff report 
and resolution to recommend award of the Electrification contract to Balfour Beatty 
Infrastructure, Inc. at the July 2016 Board meeting.  After the award of the contract a 
Limited Notice to Proceed (LNTP) is anticipated to be issued to the contractor. The 
LNTP will allow the contractor to begin design as well as limited procurement of long 
lead material. Construction effort is not included within the scope of the LNTP. 

A Master Agreement was signed and executed with Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E) in 
April 2016 for continued coordination and support for the implementation of 
electrification. The PCEP team continues coordination with PG&E on a Power Quality 
study to finalize scope and necessary infrastructure to support Caltrain loads required for 
electrification. PG&E facilities studies are scheduled to be completed by July 2016 and 
design of necessary infrastructures will continue through the remainder of 2016. 

The PCEP team continued to provide technical support for ongoing coordination efforts 
with third party jurisdictions such as California Public Utility Commission (CPUC) as well 
as the local cities and counties. 

Tunnel Modification 

Tunnel modifications will be required on the four tunnels located in San Francisco. This 
effort is required to accommodate the required clearance for the overhead catenary 
system (OCS) to support electrification of the corridor. Work was completed on the 
preliminary design for the Tunnel Modification including 65% design plans and 
specification, construction schedule, construction cost estimate and overall 
constructability of the project.  Comments for preliminary cost estimate and construction 
schedules were reviewed by staff and will be incorporated in the next technical 
deliverables. The PCEP team will start final design for the Tunnel Modifications in July 
2016 with a target completion of the end of 2016.  

Central Equipment Maintenance and Operations Facility Modifications for EMUs  

The CEMOF Modifications project will provide safe work areas for performing 
maintenance on the new EMUs. The schematic design for CEMOF modifications is 
complete. Preliminary design efforts remain on hold until the Stadler vehicle design is 
available. Selection of a car body is necessary to complete design of maintenance 
platforms.  

  



Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 

Project Summary 6  June 30, 2016 

4.0 ELECTRIC MULTIPLE UNITS  

Negotiations began with Stadler in San Mateo the week of May 2 – 6, 2016. Discussions 
focused on technical exceptions, contractual and legal exceptions. The PCEP team 
issued a letter to Stadler on May 20, 2016 to request a proposal in response to 
negotiations.  Stadler submitted a revised proposal on June 17, 2016 after which 
negotiations were successfully completed in late June.  The team issued a staff report 
and resolution to recommend award of the EMU contract to Stadler US, Inc. in July 
2016. Discussion regarding issuance of a Limited Notice to Proceed (LNTP) is 
underway. The LNTP will allow Stadler to prepare and submit milestone deliverables and 
begin their design efforts sooner rather than waiting for a Full NTP. 

The Buy America Pre-Award Audit and Certification was conducted on May 25 – 27, 
2016 at Stadler’s Manufacturing and Assembly Facility in Salt Lake City, UT. A report 
was issued on June 24, 2016. Based on the data reviewed during the audit, the Audit 
Team is satisfied that the rail vehicles to be purchased meet the requirements of Section 
165(b)(3) of the Surface Transportation Assistance Act of 1982, as amended, and as 
required under the Terms and Conditions of the proposed contract between Stadler and 
Caltrain. 

The JPB reviewed the Maintenance Services Agreement approach in which Stadler 
would provide the maintenance work for the existing Caltrain diesel fleet in addition to 
the new EMUs under their named subcontractor. A method will need to be determined 
with Rail Operations and Maintenance staff to compare the Stadler proposal to the 
current contract and make sure the decision to exercise the option is made on an equal 
footing basis. 

EMU and overall systems integration efforts continued. The predominant method of 
controlling the interfaces will be to create an interface control document (ICD) to define 
the interfaces and allow the parties to agree to the specific details as they evolve. A 
System Interface Matrix is reviewed at regularly scheduled meetings and updated as 
items are closed or added. Correspondence will be exchanged to advance the level of 
detail in each ICD. System integration efforts involve coordinating the following 
disciplines (as well as others not mentioned here): EMU with wayside, electrification, 
CEMOF, testing/commissioning site, CBOSS PTC, CHSRA, EMU 
Testing/Commissioning Site and Track time availability, T/C site access, and schedule 
coordination with OCS project. A list of EMU tests that can be performed on the Santa 
Clara Drill Track as well as those that will need to be performed on the Main Line is 
being finalized.  

  



 Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
 4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 

Project Summary 7 June 30, 2016 

5.0 SAFETY  

The PCEP Safety team continues to develop and update the safety and security 
management processes as committed to within the scope of the project Safety and 
Security Management Plan (SSMP).  The following highlights several areas of focus of 
the Safety team during the last quarter: 

• The project Hazard Management Plan was finalized and approved by the JPB Safety 
and Security Director.  The project team continues to work with the IndustrySafe 
Hazard Log application that will be utilized throughout the project life cycle as a tool 
to support the project hazard management program.   

• As a means of continuous improvement, an internal audit of the SSMP was 
performed resulting in several suggestions that were incorporated within the 
document.  In addition the PMOC also provided comments on the content of the 
SSMP following its detailed review of the document. These comments are in the 
process of being addressed within the next revision of the document. 

• The project safety team is working closely with the JPB Safety and Security Office, 
Rail Operations, and Engineering and Construction to review and update the Caltrain 
Roadway Worker Protection (RWP) program as a means to ensure the ongoing 
priority to consistently support the highest level of on-track safety standards 
continues to be achieved. 

• PCEP Safety staff continues to work closely with the JPB Safety and Security, Rail 
Operations, and Engineering and Construction in coordinating project requirements. 

  



Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 

Project Summary 8  June 30, 2016 

6.0 QUALITY  

Quality Management continues to coordinate with the PCEP team via training, audits 
and technical support. 

Activity This Quarter 

• Continued to provide on-going quality-related assistance to the PCEP team 
• Performed an audit of LTK (Systems Integration) on April 27, 2016.  The audit 

resulted in no findings. 

• Cost Estimating NCR 004 was closed on April 28, 2016.  Corrective actions are in 
place. 

• Investigating / lining up Independent Labs for Quality Assurance (QA) Oversight 
(Electrification / EMU) 

• Reviewed the following Quality Control (QC) documents 

o PCEP Cost Estimate Rev 4 
o RFP ICE to Baseline – Rev 2 Report  
o DRAFT Schedule Basis for C14.02 Baseline Schedule   
o PHA / TVA comment incorporation & revision  

• Performed an audit of GF Tunnel Design on May 4, 2016.  The audit resulted in no 
findings. 

• Developed and implemented a Quality Manager Transition Plan due to the 
resignation of the PCEP Quality Manager  

• Performed an audit of B&G Transportation on June 7, 2016.  The audit resulted in 
no findings. 

• Performed an audit of LR Transit on June 8, 2016.  The audit resulted in no 
findings.  

The Table below provides details on the status of audits performed through the 
reporting period. 

Table 6-1 Quality Assurance Audit Summary 

Quality Assurance Activity This Reporting Period Total to Date 

Internal Audits Conducted 4 14 

Non-Conformances Open 2 2 

Non-Conformances Issued 0 4 

Non-Conformances Closed 1 2 

 



 Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
 4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 

Project Summary 9 June 30, 2016 

Activity Next Quarter 

• Contribute to the preparation of the final submittal of FTA documents. 
• Conduct visit to project office to coordinate and meet with Director of Program 

Management. 
• No audits will be conducted in July. The AECOM Management audit scheduled for 

August may be pushed to September to allow for the replacement Quality Manager 
(QM) to participate, depending on the QM’s start date.  In September an audit of 
Scheduling will be conducted.  A compliance audit of AECOM Document Control is 
anticipated 60 - 90 days following implementation of the Document Control System 
on the Aconex platform.                            

• Continue implementation of Quality Manager Transition Plan until such time as 
replacement Quality Manager joins the project. 

  



Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 

Project Summary 10  June 30, 2016 

7.0 SCHEDULE  

The Master Program Schedule (MPS) was updated in April 2016 to incorporate 
schedules prepared by the apparent best value Electrification proposer and selected 
EMU proposer. This update formed the basis of a revised baseline schedule.  

The new schedule baseline contains two Revenue Service Dates (RSD). The first RSD 
represents a “soft opening” with six EMU trainsets providing revenue operations. This 
date is forecasted as December 2020. The second RSD represents “full service” with all 
16 EMU trainsets providing revenue operations. This date without contingency is 
forecast as July 2021. With the addition of six months of contingency to account for 
potential risk to the project the Full Service RSD is anticipated as December 2021. 

A summary of the overall schedule status for the PCEP is provided in Table 7-1. 

Table 7-1 Schedule Status 

MILESTONES 
PROGRAM 

PLAN 
LAST 

QUARTER* 
THIS 

QUARTER 

Electrification Contract NTP 08/01/2016 N/A 08/01/2016 

EMU Contract NTP 08/01/2016 N/A 08/01/2016 

Start of Electrification Construction 03/20/2017 N/A 03/20/2017 

Start Pre-Revenue Operations 09/08/2020 N/A 09/08/2020 

RSD Soft Opening (w/ Risk Contingency) 12/31/2020 N/A 12/31/2020 

RSD Full Service (w/o Risk Contingency) 07/12/2021 N/A 07/12/2021 

RSD Full Service (w/ Risk Contingency) 12/30/2021 N/A 12/30/2021 

*The MPS was under reevaluation last quarter, thus the post contract award schedule was still in 
development. 

  



 Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
 4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 

Project Summary 11 June 30, 2016 

8.0 BUDGET AND EXPENDITURES 

The budget was updated to reflect final negotiations with the Electrification Design Build 
contractor and the EMU Manufacturer.  The negotiations resulted in a reduction in the 
amount for each contract.  The budget was also modified to capture revised cost 
estimates for private utilities, management oversight costs, TASI support and insurance.  

The overall program budget remains unchanged. 

A summary of the overall budget and expenditure status for the PCEP is shown in the 
following tables. Table 8-1 reflects the Electrification budget, Table 8-2 reflects the EMU 
budget, and Table 8-3 reflects the overall project budget. 

Table 8-1 Electrification Budget & Expenditure Status 

Description of Work  Budget  Actual This 
Quarter 

 Accrued To
Date 

 Estimate To
Complete 

 Estimate At 
Completion 

 (A)  (B) (C) (D) (E) = (C) + (D)
Electrification 696,610,558$     -$                   -$                   696,610,558$     696,610,558$     
Tunnel Notching 11,029,649$       -$                   -$                   11,029,649$       11,029,649$       
Real Estate 28,385,456$       674,185$            4,319,739$         24,065,717$       28,385,456$       
Private Utilities 66,526,406$       66,300$             1,714,683$         64,811,723$       66,526,406$       
Management Oversight 142,814,987$     3,027,504$         57,264,144$       85,550,843$       142,814,987$     

Executive Management 7,494,952$         167,506$            2,031,842$         5,463,110$         7,494,952$         
Planning 7,235,808$         47,286$             3,960,334$         3,275,474$         7,235,808$         
Community Relations 2,826,960$         27,660$             754,901$            2,072,059$         2,826,960$         
Safety & Security 2,350,737$         38,714$             441,523$            1,909,214$         2,350,737$         
Project Management Services 20,905,616$       929,874$            5,732,467$         15,173,149$       20,905,616$       
Engineering & Construction 11,934,024$       51,097$             1,705,799$         10,228,225$       11,934,024$       
Electrification Engineering & Management 49,093,647$       1,064,515$         13,300,202$       35,793,445$       49,093,647$       
IT Support 818,790$            43,362$             297,719$            521,071$            818,790$            
Operations Support 1,423,335$         4,550$               296,964$            1,126,371$         1,423,335$         
General Support 3,859,806$         48,356$             1,000,107$         2,859,699$         3,859,806$         
Budget / Grants / Finance 1,268,408$         1,715$               80,663$             1,187,745$         1,268,408$         
Legal 2,480,274$         379,636$            1,404,869$         1,075,405$         2,480,274$         
Other Direct Costs 5,583,917$         221,878$            1,134,750$         4,449,167$         5,583,917$         
Prior Costs 2002 - 2013 25,538,712$       1,355$               25,122,004$       416,708$            25,538,712$       

TASI Support 53,063,531$       124,767$            254,845$            52,808,686$       53,063,531$       
RRP Insurance 3,500,000$         -$                   -$                   3,500,000$         3,500,000$         
Environmental Mitigations 17,685,498$       -$                   -$                   17,685,498$       17,685,498$       
Required Projects 17,337,378$       -$                   497,318$            16,840,060$       17,337,378$       
Maintenance Training 1,021,808$         -$                   -$                   1,021,808$         1,021,808$         
Finance Charges 3,168,200$         -$                   -$                   3,168,200$         3,168,200$         
Contingency 276,970,649$     -$                   -$                   276,970,649$     276,970,649$     
Owner's Reserve -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
ELECTRIFICATION SUBTOTAL 1,318,114,119$   3,892,756$         64,050,729$       1,254,063,390$   1,318,114,119$   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 

Project Summary 12  June 30, 2016 

Table 8-2 EMU Budget & Expenditure Status 

Description of Work  Budget  Actual This 
Quarter 

 Accrued To
Date 

 Estimate To
Complete 

 Estimate At 
Completion 

 (A)  (B) (C) (D) (E) = (C) + (D)
EMU 550,899,459$     -$                   -$                   550,899,459$     550,899,459$     
CEMOF Modifications 1,344,000$         -$                   -$                   1,344,000$         1,344,000$         
Management Oversight 62,150,192$       1,527,460$         12,791,844$       49,358,348$       62,150,192$       

Executive Management 4,715,388$         102,786$            1,278,990$         3,436,398$         4,715,388$         
Community Relations 1,631,907$         12,479$             184,358$            1,447,549$         1,631,907$         
Safety & Security 570,000$            23,728$             109,268$            460,732$            570,000$            
Project Management Services 11,713,423$       766,609$            3,763,096$         7,950,327$         11,713,423$       
Engineering & Construction 89,113$             -$                   -$                   89,113$             89,113$             
EMU Engineering & Management 33,083,374$       406,849$            5,686,034$         27,397,340$       33,083,374$       
IT Support 501,839$            27,290$             173,034$            328,805$            501,839$            
Operations Support 1,879,350$         9,857$               235,998$            1,643,352$         1,879,350$         
General Support 2,373,849$         27,385$             213,512$            2,160,337$         2,373,849$         
Budget / Grants / Finance 603,101$            1,524$               167,208$            435,893$            603,101$            
Legal 1,258,753$         80,854$             331,690$            927,063$            1,258,753$         
Other Direct Costs 3,730,096$         68,099$             648,656$            3,081,440$         3,730,096$         

TASI Support 2,740,000$         -$                   -$                   2,740,000$         2,740,000$         
Required Projects 4,500,000$         -$                   -$                   4,500,000$         4,500,000$         
Finance Charges 1,941,800$         -$                   -$                   1,941,800$         1,941,800$         
Contingency 38,562,962$       -$                   -$                   38,562,962$       38,562,962$       
Owner's Reserve -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
EMU SUBTOTAL 662,138,414$     1,527,460$         12,791,844$       649,346,570$     662,138,414$     

 

Table 8-3 PCEP Budget & Expenditure Status 

Description of Work  Budget  Actual This 
Quarter 

 Accrued To
Date 

 Estimate To
Complete 

 Estimate At 
Completion 

 (A)  (B) (C) (D) (E) = (C) + (D)
ELECTRIFICATION SUBTOTAL 1,318,114,119$   3,892,756$         64,050,729$       1,254,063,390$   1,318,114,119$   
EMU SUBTOTAL 662,138,414$     1,527,460$         12,791,844$       649,346,570$     662,138,414$     
PCEP TOTAL 1,980,252,533$   5,420,216$         76,842,573$       1,903,409,960$   1,980,252,533$   

 

Notes regarding tables above: 

1. A revised baseline budget was established on April 14, 2015 at the time of the Core Capacity Grant, 
Entry into Engineering application. 

2. Based on the status of the PeopleSoft 9.1 data available, the above table is an estimate of the incurred 
costs and Estimate to Complete. 

3. During the Entry into Engineering estimate update costs and budget were reassigned under different 
headers to better align with the Scope of Services.  

4. Accrued To Date is the combination of invoices received and accrued costs. 

  



 Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
 4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 

Project Summary 13 June 30, 2016 

9.0 FUNDING  

The PCEP has been working with FTA staff as well as the FTA’s appointed Project 
Management Oversight Contractor (PMOC) to provide needed documentation required 
to achieve the Entry into Engineering milestone for the $647M Core Capacity grant.  This 
includes an update to the 20-Year Financial plan reflecting changes in the project cost 
estimate and project funding.   

Negotiations continue with California High-Speed Rail Authority (CHSRA) regarding 
oversight and technical issues. These negotiations are in support of finalizing the 
CHSRA’s $600M grant which is included in the 9-Party Funding Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) as well as the additional $113M included in the 7-Party Regional 
Funding Supplement.   

The JPB is also in the process of working with the funding partners to execute the 7-
Party Regional Funding Supplement to provide the additional project funding. The JPB 
Board approved the funding supplement at the May 2016 Board meeting.   

Figure 8-1 shows the percentage of contributions from the various sources that comprise 
the total $1.980B funding plan.  

Figure 9-1 Funding Plan 

 



Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 

Project Summary 14  June 30, 2016 

10.0 RISK MANAGEMENT  

Risk Management continues to actively monitor the Risk Register originally produced in 
2014. This active monitoring consists of updating risk descriptions, effects, and 
mitigations based upon weekly input from risk owners and through a monthly cycle of 
risk updating per the process established in the Risk Identification and Mitigation Plan. 
An updated Risk Register is based on decisions made at Risk Assessment Committee 
meetings. Selected risks are forwarded to risk owners for grading and planning of 
mitigation measures. 

The following are the top risks at the end of the quarter: 

• If overhead utilities are not relocated on time the Electrification contractor may 
incur delays 

• Upgrades to the electrical service needed for the electrification project are 
dependent upon final agreement with PG&E for which technical and contractual l 
issues must first be resolved. 

• Modifications to proposed catenary pole locations may need to be revised to avoid 
sight distance problems. 

• TASI may not be able to deliver sufficient staff resources to support the 
construction and testing of the electrification system. 

• Existing Caltrain processes for reviewing and approving site specific work plans 
(SSWP) are not sufficiently flexible to allow the design-build contractor to maximize 
efficiencies in the construction of the electrification system. 

• JPB’s current system integration and configuration program will require additional 
staff expertise and systems improvements to accommodate proposed 
electrification improvements. 

• The final configuration of the electrification system requires the installation of a 
duct bank under UPRR tracks requiring coordination with UPRR the negotiation of 
a broad range of issues that may not be completed in a timely manner. 

• All funding for the electrification program is not in place and will require 
agreements with all parties to the 9-Party MOU and FTA and may be affected by 
legal challenges associated with the CHSRA project. 

• Delays in locating and relocating underground utilities may result in delays to the 
installation of the electrification system. 

 

 

 

 

Table 10-1 provides insight into the number of risks in each classification and the 
changes for the previous quarter. 



 Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
 4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 

Project Summary 15 June 30, 2016 

Table 10-1 Summary of Risks 

Risk Classification Original 
(August 2014) 

Last Quarter 
(ending 3/31/16) 

This Quarter 
(ending 6/30/16) 

Significant Risks 5 2 3 

High Risks 79 59 57 

Low Risks 80 68 66 

Subtotal 164 129 126 

Retired Risks 35* 92 97 

Total Risks 199 221 223 
 
* After initial identification 35 risks were deemed to be a duplication of other existing risks and were either 
retired or combined to add additional context. 

  



Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 

Project Summary 16  June 30, 2016 

11.0 ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE 

The National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) environmental clearance for the PCEP scope to date has been completed.   

Permit Activity: 

• Section 106 National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA) process has concluded. 

• Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act (ESA) process has concluded. 

• The target completion date for completing the United Sites Army Corps of 
Engineers (USACE), San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board 
(SFRWQCB), California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) and the San 
Francisco Bay Conservation Development Commission (SF BCDC) is 2016. 

PCEP Mitigation Program: The JPB has prepared a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program (MMRP) to ensure that mitigation measures identified in the PCEP EIR are fully 
implemented during project implementation. The JPB will implement the mitigation 
measures through its own actions, those of the Electrification contractor and actions 
taken in cooperation with other agencies and entities.  

12.0 UTILITY RELOCATION 

Monthly Utility Coordination meetings continued during the quarter with all Telecom and 
power carriers within the JPB Right of Way (ROW). Discussions have been focused on 
the utility relocation timeline as it relates to the overall project schedule, responsibilities 
of relocation, applicable design standards of relocation, and reconciliation of agreements 
and records.  

Final verification requests were submitted to utility companies during the quarter for final 
concurrence of existing utility conditions and records.  Field verifications will be 
performed during the next quarter prior to the issuance of final relocation notices.   

Utility companies began submission of relocation schedules and the PCEP team will 
continue to work with all utility companies to refine relocation schedules and relocation 
criteria in the 1st quarter of Fiscal Year 2017. 

  



 Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
 4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 

Project Summary 17 June 30, 2016 

13.0 REAL ESTATE  

Preparation of appraisal maps, plats and legal descriptions have continued for all 
segments throughout the project corridor. Appraisal packages contain preliminary title 
reports, plat maps and the proposed acquisition appraisal map. The initial appraisal 
packages required for appraisal work have been completed for all segments (1 – 4).   

Segment 4 (Santa Clara – San Jose) Offer presentation packages have been 
completed.  Offer presentation meetings have begun with property owners on Segment 
4 and will continue through the 1st quarter of FY2017.  

Segment 2 (South San Francisco – Atherton) Offer presentation packages will be 
complete in 1st quarter of FY2017. Fee simple purchase acquisitions in Segment 2 offer 
packages are currently complete and offers will begin in 1st quarter FY2017. 

The PCEP team will seek JPB Board approval in July for the acquisition of six fee 
acquisition parcels in Segment 2 and one parcel in Segment 4 to be used for the 
construction of Paralleling Station 7 (PS-7). 

Table 13-1 provides an overview of property status. 

Table 13-1 Overview Real Estate Status 

Segment Appraisal 
Packages* 

Appraisals 
Completed 

Acquisition 
Offers 

Acquisition Status 
Escrow 
Closed 

Value 
Litigation 

Parcel  
Possession 

Segment 4 20 15 2 0 0 0 

Segment 2 30 6 0 0 0 0 

Segment 1 6 0 0 0 0 0 

Segment 3 10 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 66 21 2 0 0 0 

*Appraisal Packages include Plat Map, Legal Description and Appraisal Map. Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) 
packages include Appraisal Maps only. 

  



Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 

Project Summary 18  June 30, 2016 

14.0 THIRD-PARTY AGREEMENTS 

Third-party coordination is necessary for work impacting public infrastructure, utilities, 
ROW acquisitions, and others. The table below outlines the status of necessary 
agreements for the PCEP. 

Table 14-1 Third-Party Agreement Status 

Type Agreement Third-Party Status 

Governmental 
Jurisdictions  

Construction & 
Maintenance1 

City and County of San Francisco In Process 

City of Brisbane In Process2 

City of South San Francisco In Process2 

City of San Bruno In Process 

City of Millbrae Executed 

City of Burlingame In Process2 

City of San Mateo Executed 

City of Belmont In Process2 

City of San Carlos Executed 

City of Redwood City In Process 

City of Atherton In Process 

County of San Mateo In Process 

City of Menlo Park In Process2 

City of Palo Alto In Process 

City of Mountain View In Process2 

City of Sunnyvale In Process 

City of Santa Clara In Process 

County of Santa Clara In Process2 

City of San Jose In Process 

Condemnation 
Authority 

San Francisco In Process 

San Mateo Executed 

Santa Clara Executed 

Utilities 
Infrastructure Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E) Executed3 

Operating Rules California Public Utilities Commission 
(CPUC) In Process 

Transportation 
& Railroad 

Construction & 
Maintenance Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) Executed4 

Construction & 
Maintenance 

California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) In Process 

Trackage Rights Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) Executed4 

 
 



 Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
 4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 

Project Summary 19 June 30, 2016 

Notes regarding table above: 
1 Agreements memorialize the parties’ consultation and cooperation, designate respective rights and obligations 
and ensure cooperation between the JPB and the cities and counties in connection with the design and 
construction of the PCEP.  A comprehensive agreement is planned for each of the 17 cities and three counties 
along the Caltrain ROW and within the PCEP limits. 
2 Approved by City Council and awaiting signature for execution. 
3 Master agreement and two supplemental agreements. 
4 Utilizing existing agreements. 

 

 

  



Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 

Project Summary 20  June 30, 2016 

15.0 COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND OUTREACH 

The following PCEP related community meetings and briefings took place in the last 
quarter: 

• Testimony at Senate Transportation and Housing Subcommittee Hearing 
• Testimony at Assembly Budget Subcommittee Hearing 
• Meeting with Peninsula Corridor Working Group (3) 
• Meeting with Diridon Station Working Group  
• Presentation at the City / County Staff Coordination Group (3) 
• Meeting with Caltrain Commuter Coalition Steering Committee 
• Presentation at the Menlo Park Chamber Transportation Committee 
• Presentation at Local Policy Maker Group (3) 
• Presentation at San Carlos City Council   
• Presentation at Belmont City Council  
• Presentation at SAMCEDA (2) 
• Presentation at South San Francisco City Council  
• Presentation at the VTA Citizen Advisory Committee 
• Presentation at the VTA Policy Advisory Committee 
• Presentation at the Brokers North Tour Group  
• Tabled at HSR Open House Meeting in San Jose  
• Presentation at the JPB Citizen Advisory Committee 
• Quarterly Call with State and Federal Staff   
• Presentation at the JPB Bicycle Advisory Committee 
• Tabled at HSR Scoping Meeting in San Francisco  
• Meeting at Menlo Park City Council (2) 
• Tabled HSR Scoping Meeting in Mountain View 
• Presentation at the SFCTA Citizen Advisory Committee 
• Presentation at the Menlo Park Chamber 
• Presentation at the Caltrain Accessibility Advisory Committee 
• Presentation at the Local Policy Maker Group (special meeting)  
• Presentation at the Caltrain Commuter Coalition  
• Presentation at the SMCTA Citizen Advisory Committee 
• Unanimous support VTA Board of Directors on the 7-party Regional Funding 

Supplement 
• Tabled HSR Community Meeting in San Jose  
• Unanimous support MTC Programming and Allocations Subcommittee on the 7-party 

Regional Funding Supplement 
• Unanimous support Brisbane City Council on the PCEP Agreement 
• Presentation at the Diridon Station Joint Policy Advisory Board 



 Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
 4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 

Project Summary 21 June 30, 2016 

• Presentation / Action by the SFCTA Plans and Program Subcommittee 
• Unanimous support Mountain View Council on the PCEP Agreement 
• Unanimous support MTC Commission on the 7-party Regional Funding Supplement 
• Unanimous support from the SFCTA Board on the 7-party Regional Funding 

Supplement 
• Quarterly meeting with Silicon Valley and SF Bicycle Coalitions 
• Presentation at the Mineta Transportation Institute   

Press Release on 7-Party Regional Funding Supplement: 
http://www.caltrain.com/about/MediaRelations/news/Caltrain_s_Board_Approves_Multi-
party_Caltrain_Modernization_Funding_Agreement__High_Speed_Rail_Commits_Additi
onal__113_Million.html 

The PCEP received the WTS Innovative Transportation Solutions Award. Link to the 
press release: 
http://www.caltrain.com/about/MediaRelations/news/San_Francisco_Women_s_Transpo
rtation_Seminar_to_Honor_Transit_District_Employee__Caltrain_Electrification_Project.
html 

  

http://www.caltrain.com/about/MediaRelations/news/Caltrain_s_Board_Approves_Multi-party_Caltrain_Modernization_Funding_Agreement__High_Speed_Rail_Commits_Additional__113_Million.html
http://www.caltrain.com/about/MediaRelations/news/Caltrain_s_Board_Approves_Multi-party_Caltrain_Modernization_Funding_Agreement__High_Speed_Rail_Commits_Additional__113_Million.html
http://www.caltrain.com/about/MediaRelations/news/Caltrain_s_Board_Approves_Multi-party_Caltrain_Modernization_Funding_Agreement__High_Speed_Rail_Commits_Additional__113_Million.html
http://www.caltrain.com/about/MediaRelations/news/San_Francisco_Women_s_Transportation_Seminar_to_Honor_Transit_District_Employee__Caltrain_Electrification_Project.html
http://www.caltrain.com/about/MediaRelations/news/San_Francisco_Women_s_Transportation_Seminar_to_Honor_Transit_District_Employee__Caltrain_Electrification_Project.html
http://www.caltrain.com/about/MediaRelations/news/San_Francisco_Women_s_Transportation_Seminar_to_Honor_Transit_District_Employee__Caltrain_Electrification_Project.html


Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 

Project Summary 22  June 30, 2016 

16.0 DBE PARTICIPATION AND LABOR STATISTICS 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and labor statistics will be reported after 
construction has commenced.  

 

 



 Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
 4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 

Appendices 23 June 30, 2016 

APPENDICIES 

 

Appendix A – Acronyms 

Appendix B – Schedule 

  



Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 

Appendix A 24  June 30, 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A – Acronyms 

 



 Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
 4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 

Appendix A 25 June 30, 2016 

AIM Advanced Information Management 

ARINC Aeronautical Radio, Inc. 

BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District 

BAFO Best and Final Offer 

CalMod Caltrain Modernization 
Program 

Caltrans California Department of 
Transportation 

CDFW California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife 

CEMOF Centralized Equipment 
Maintenance and Operations 
Facility 

CEQA California Environmental 
Quality Act (State) 

CHSRA California High-Speed Rail 
Authority 

CIP Capital Improvement Plan 

CPUC California Public Utilities 
Commission 

D-B  Design-Build 

DBE Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise 

DEMP  Design, Engineering, and 
Management Planning 

EA Environmental Assessment 

EAC Expenditure at Completion 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EMU Electric Multiple Unit 

ESA Endangered Species Act 

FEIR Final Environmental Impact 
Report 

FONSI Finding of No Significant 
Impact 

FRA Federal Railway 
Administration 

FTA Federal Transit 
Administration 

GO-26D  General Order 26D 

ICD Internal Control Document 

ITS Intelligent Transportation 
System 

JPB  Peninsula Corridor Joint 
Powers Board 

LNTP Limited Notice to Proceed 

MMRP Mitigation, Monitoring, and 
Reporting Program 

MOU Memorandum of 
Understanding 

MPS Master Program Schedule 

NCR Non Conformance Report 

NEPA National Environmental 
Policy Act (Federal) 

NHPA National Historic 
Preservation Act 

NMFS National Marine Fisheries 
Service 

NTE Not to Exceed 

NTP Notice to Proceed 

OCS Overhead Contact System 

PCEP Peninsula Corridor 
Electrification Project 



Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 
 

Appendix A 26  June 30, 2016 

PG&E Pacific Gas and Electric 

PHA Preliminary Hazard Analysis 

PMOC Project Management 
Oversight Contractor 

QA Quality Assurance 

QC Quality Control 

QMP Quality Management Plan 

QMS Quality Management System 

RAMP Real Estate Acquisition 
Management Plan 

RE Real Estate 

RFP Request for Proposals 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

ROCS Rail Operations Center 
System 

ROW Right-of-Way 

RRP Railroad Protective Liability 
Insurance 

RSD Revenue Service Date 

RWP Roadway Worker Protection 

SamTrans San Mateo County Transit 
District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and 
Data Acquisition 

SCC Standard Cost Categories 

SFBCDC San Francisco Bay 
Conservation Development 
Commission 

SFCTA San Francisco County 
Transportation Authority 

SFMTA San Francisco Municipal 
Transportation Authority 

SFRWQCB San Francisco Regional 
Water Quality Control Board 

SOGR State of Good Repair 

SSMP Safety and Security 
Management Plan 

TASI Transit America Services Inc. 

TBD To Be Determined 

UPRR Union Pacific Railroad 

USACE United States Army Corp of 
Engineers 

USFWS U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service 

VTA Santa Clara Valley 
Transportation Authority 



 Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project 
 4th Quarter FY 2016 Progress Report 

Appendix B 27  June 30, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B – Schedule 
 



Page 1 of 6 

 AGENDA ITEM # 8 

 AUGUST 4, 2016 

 

PENINSULA CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS BOARD 

STAFF REPORT 

 

TO:  Joint Powers Board 

 

THROUGH:  Jim Hartnett 

Executive Director  

 

FROM:  Michelle Bouchard 

Chief Operating Officer, Rail 

 

SUBJECT: KEY CALTRAIN PERFORMANCE STATISTICS JUNE 2016 

 

In June 2016, Caltrain’s average weekday ridership (AWR) set an all-time high of 65,049, 

which is 1.3 percent more than the June 2015 AWR of 64,202.  The total number of 

passengers who rode Caltrain in June 2016 also set an all-time high of 1,734,508, which 

is 1.5 percent more than June 2015 ridership of 1,709,708.  Preliminary Farebox Revenue 

for June 2016 set a record total of $8,402,596 and increased 15.6 percent over 

June 2015.  Finalized Farebox Revenue data for the fiscal year end is targeted to be 

provided for the November 3 Board meeting.  

 

On-time performance (OTP) for June 2016 was 90.4 percent, compared to 85 percent 

OTP for June 2015.  When trains arriving within 10 minutes of the scheduled arrival time 

are included, OTP rises to 95.2 percent.  Overall in June 2016, there were 871 

mechanical minutes of delay compared to 1,110 mechanical minutes of delay in 

June 2015.  There were two days that operated with 100 percent of the trains on time 

and seven additional days with 95 percent or better OTP.   

 

Looking at customer service statistics, there were 8.4 complaints per 100,000 passengers 

in June 2016 which is lower than the 9.7 complaints in June 2015. 

 

Shuttle ridership for June 2016 is up 9.1 percent from June 2015.  For the station shuttles, 

the Millbrae-Broadway shuttle averaged 188 daily riders.  The Belmont-Hillsdale shuttle 

averaged 50 daily riders.  The weekend Tamien-San Jose shuttle averaged 75 riders per 

day.  Stanford’s Marguerite shuttle accounted for approximately 74 percent of Caltrain 

shuttle ridership in June 2016.  When the Marguerite shuttle was removed, the impact to 

ridership was a decrease of 8.2 percent. 

 

FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2016 

Looking back at FY2016 average AWR was 60,219, which surpassed the previous high of 

58,367 in FY2015 by 3.2 percent.  Total ridership for the fiscal year also set a record at 

19,233,427, which surpassed the previous high of 18,544,667 set in FY2015, by 

3.7 percent.  Preliminary Farebox Revenue for the FY2016 also set a record total of 

$89,104,295 by 6.9 percent over FY2015. 

 



Page 2 of 6 

OTP decreased over the past year.  For FY2016 OTP was 89.5 percent, which is down 

from 90.2 percent in FY2015.  Some issues that contributed to lower OTP included 

mechanical issues, trespasser fatalities, vehicle strikes, bicycles, large crowds, 

passengers needing assistance, and speed restrictions.  On April 4, 2016 Caltrain 

updated its timetable to increase reliability.  Caltrain also increased bike capacity on 

trains by adding a third bike car to Bombardier train sets.  To address passenger 

capacity issues on trains, train equipment cycles were also adjusted to prioritize and 

assign Bombardier sets to trains with the highest passengers. 

 

For the fiscal year, complaints have averaged 9.3 per 100,000 passengers. This is slightly 

lower than the number of complaints from FY2015, which averaged 10.4 complaints per 

100,000 passengers. 

 

Shuttle AWR was 9,283 for FY2016, which is an increase of 717 or 8.4 percent over the 

8,566 AWR in FY2015.  Shuttle ridership continues to be largely influenced by Stanford’s 

Marguerite shuttle, which constitutes for approximately 71 percent of Caltrain FY2016 

shuttle ridership.   

 

Caltrain Promotions – June 2016 

 

Copa America Centenario – The international soccer competition kicked off on June 3 

when team USA took on Chile at Levi’s Stadium.  Two other games were played on 

June 6 and June 13.  The quarterfinal on June 18 was the fourth match where Mexico 

took on Chile.  Additional post-game train service was provided and station 

ambassadors were on hand to assist customers with information at all four games.  

Additional communication to promote the event included website information, social 

media engagement, news release, the Peninsula Moves blog, and Visual Message Signs 

(VMS) messaging and conductor announcements.               

 

California Clasico at Stanford Stadium – The San Jose Earthquakes took on the 

Los Angeles Galaxy in their annual grudge match at Stanford Stadium on Saturday, 

June 25.  Selected trains made extra stops at the Stanford station, making it easier to 

get to the game.  Promotions included posting information on the special events web 

page, social media engagement, news release, Peninsula Moves blog and VMS 

platform messages. and conductor announcements leading up to the game.  Caltrain 

carried an additional 1,303 riders to the game.        

 

Gay Pride Parade – Caltrain provided extra train service to the 46th annual 

San Francisco Pride Parade and Festival on Sunday, June 26.  To accommodate the 

larger crowds, five extra trains were added to the schedule.  The alternate schedule 

showing the extra trains was posted on the Pride Parade landing page and main 

weekend schedule to promote the special service trains and inform customers.  Caltrain 

used social media, news releases, the Peninsula Moves blog and VMS platform 

messaging and conductor announcements.  Caltrain carried an additional 4,846 riders 

to the parade.   

 

 

 



Page 3 of 6 

Caltrain Social Promotions – June 2016 

 

Caltrain gained more than 5,000 new followers during the month, pushing its reach to 

more than 84,000 individuals and organizations.  With a number of new riders using the 

special event service, the spike in growth is likely related to these individuals looking for 

information on Caltrain services.  One area that enjoyed a surge in growth was 

Caltrain’s Quora account, which added nearly 2,000 additional followers in June.  

Quora is a chatboard platform where users can pose and respond to questions.  Staff 

moderates the Caltrain topics each month and uses it as another way of providing 

answers to “frequently asked questions.”  Caltrain experienced a spike in social media 

tied to the June 1 fatality and an increase in social activity throughout the first week of 

June as a result of policy decisions made by the Board at its June meeting. 

 

 

Prepared by: Jayme Ackemann, Director, Marketing and  650.508.7934 

   Communications  

                     Catherine David, Senior Planner 650.508.6471 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 4 of 6 

 
 

 



Page 5 of 6 

Table A 

 

 
 

Graph A 

 

 
 

 

 

FY2015 FY2016 % Change

Total Ridership 1,709,178 1,734,508 1.5%

Average Weekday Ridership 64,202           65,049 1.3%

Total Farebox Revenue* $7,270,551 $8,402,596 15.6%

On-time Performance 85.0% 90.4% 6.4%

Average Caltrain Shuttle Ridership 9,118 9,945 9.1%

FY2015 FY2016 % Change

Total Ridership 18,544,667 19,233,427 3.7%

Average Weekday Ridership 58,367 60,219 3.2%

Total Farebox Revenue* $83,351,480 $89,104,295 6.9%

On-time Performance 90.2% 89.5% -0.8%

Average Caltrain Shuttle Ridership 8,566 9,283 8.4%

*Preliminary Farebox Revenue data as of July 21, 2016

June 2016

Year to Date















https://fileshare.louisberger.com/?ShareToken=F3695B942F1ACC3F4F67EF871908FE6C1E28AB81
https://fileshare.louisberger.com/?ShareToken=F3695B942F1ACC3F4F67EF871908FE6C1E28AB81


























































http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=CruyX6SvdqiDlTcpry11yab3%2fJx%2bN1qcjPiSJ%2f1z%2bmtFb3Oum8dDMyrkLkZtQMQa
http://asmdc.org/members/a07/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=uMeJ%2fGxoSYNfgBLi1oTxcHKojY9nM8JMs99JAT3Hu%2bvOzE5dKEtWVSSU5o3gAlGC
http://asmdc.org/members/a49/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=J00KFHBTszkp63jJr8Y9cp4Nb8%2byOm1TIlHbQiDSZPLBc6S2k0TsL%2bkNfVblTzL0
http://asmdc.org/members/a11/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=zCnp5DuLv%2frinYxtJG6kwoR3t0kPeEIfCVC%2fFt2Ye6%2fGzMEzv7n0Q5F61fSAx9AH
http://asmdc.org/members/a22/


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ise2cvwbAX9klSdnpYFK4jXRx1eUXMI9hJy9V3EPhMLe%2bA3q5mhYlrS5dayBoiEw
http://asmdc.org/members/a28/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=k7CwGl%2fp%2fJZQYEXZTDN4wpwQZnzPhJZf7goPYDnE2B2RJq1jNJ04BJ5%2bHD054On6
http://asmdc.org/members/a09/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=FUU%2bf5AyN2k1%2fQNmdPqacvSbSiORSY8TY%2f3B9HewpumJaGd1KtmglVQxnKih47lC
http://asmdc.org/members/a09/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=mp1DO0wngOURXSAWzA%2bep8jw%2f2RUtOvoxFw%2blR9gKyUDJJbcM%2f31nOh3dguVCt5s
http://asmdc.org/members/a19/


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=mGcj4d3V0HvuGBzpZRUBFMmIlR6kvW2LBzR8GkwhO2mAlZO77A%2beOhUT7GIW7ddf
http://asmdc.org/members/a11/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=njfBNDdZ8ftebv6Ubvwgqr2D5eejM2xC0HSVKsMKxRxJVBLqa8VouPoMmEKVYUQT
http://asmdc.org/members/a27/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ggfGaoRy81U0FkijW709Q9Onrxvz5aAhTHeSBgD4jDxA9lI2MR3Np6rcLQI4HABE
http://asmdc.org/members/a29/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=vb7QgMRn%2bo8TXs8Lfp7%2fDvzroz%2bQ4CwIjQDY83TJQIXcNEfKAUJouQKl6GwBbbBV
https://ad72.asmrc.org/


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=zDtMYgJ6%2b5cewftH4Gq%2b3Bds4mSLUHvRM9q8v4iVYrzAfE3y%2fELN4rxDz2lfrYjR
http://asmdc.org/members/a14/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=3DPDQkCF1RCR7ed912nXvuyfbKr2%2fgzNi9HwVVbXgjIAwogyvCOMFMzqBNgckEQt
http://asmdc.org/members/a48/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=l%2fglQpCgm0470EBebVqLZgaHWBg3OdDMWAVMNkKaeTqNS2acoDGpoc1E8npg7WlH
http://asmdc.org/members/a22/


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=%2fRxyt9NkbWxEbbDLpEJagovA%2f86Kb8%2fwtbX8GDs3BunU4egdvGFWorMvqkjuSQ8h
http://asmdc.org/members/a22/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ZBQCW4rOVzpErzxic3pCcugAh63ki5ACdwhvysXrk%2bNCXIepQeYGRe3R9p%2fVreQ2
http://asmdc.org/members/a30/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=oNgtBxCKE7O43VSvHXtIr2kgQVux9y2RcyhaZbKw7PNaGuN1vAhlMd6bxTUXhrCZ
http://asmdc.org/members/a22/


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=EKxG31cHnN7DqbqndXi5P5eEg5F2xQiTSuNABAiAUP2tyiQC19%2fL0%2f4%2fpFqMNs6O
http://asmdc.org/members/a41/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=wES2jgFjl%2brEVCDNZf8jHSva0Bvj5dG6onF4uPSDFzcGn7TqC0MYz4YpfkA0POhO
http://asmdc.org/members/a39/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=s73E2sazXs9eac6fA1G1kQ7A9VjI3oKz6NKStL6XkFLGNofSm4EEanbNcTnwGDTu
http://asmdc.org/members/a46/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=lR5U27B3ZVlAKUh7lj0zCnGX%2b2FvRyl1rrOZxJtPw%2f8eX39ZjqPYgMBCC6Szebpu
http://asmdc.org/members/a17/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=os8NvgkxywSSQ1rAnFq43mnzTB20fs%2fFW9ytQzU8PEmPFOJAf1JGsMYpxSJNUN80
http://asmdc.org/members/a10/


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=5jddiVwtYKkMxsHtBItv0k4C405O%2b6GQpCKD9XFB%2bq7NOcmQPEgK9Kjv5cj5J1xm
https://ad72.asmrc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=CNOxgNlTcKl6%2bk4%2bahq4DmX%2f8QAqOGF%2bsLdUdB%2bsUf1z6G%2fKHUqExnLxZIRAx1Q9
http://asmdc.org/members/a11/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=MdxYqVikP4v%2bRmRj4I7e3hFDUVcNQl3%2bshTq6zWM7fuh2n05q7KbLlaV2o4XQ9Yz
http://sd27.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=AOHenwKC53RcvsqTxqd9r7jwrzeVbabhBJEqeAui4GR6AikW3j0xIzy1OM2GykOg
http://sd19.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=Iq1RWvwYU1xnhTZmb74jyp2BmbqLwejedFXvdTnXN5IVWLu%2bmSaFzfVHAXD9MfPw
http://sd10.senate.ca.gov/


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=xW3Vwsi9KPetdZyNo5x%2btmAMsWfVFjfozGuhiRrMpE1pW72BAM%2fuVJAfhMsopYO7
http://sd15.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=pK8vA5Usne5pKWNyR8AwLzlV7uK44XCc1EUHWAapzualcqec5Q03x8lL2hoBZVYj
http://sd33.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=CH4ZCs3JKlko7SIOvzpuuwCujouObDONJrATMDmuCsKCDrZoZmdFU5rwVUV5PclS
http://sd15.senate.ca.gov/


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=GzCkkVYNAUq5wr9QoRBDMo1Sqv09Hzfy65tATYxFhRW1eeIVPEYNSPa%2fkGdZc78F
http://sd20.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=0NvymVWreRbV68w3lOgpzdC7nOFAOVRNVlJvgQbZYbCR8j2UhvPeFkYgzWxQahj4
http://sd18.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=mT0fhFpfjl1CrSuoK4ZPBtSNM3WLyFz68pEudIhqK4jBuZyOo7UXJVwuPTV1AyZw
http://district12.cssrc.us/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=kScuKP1HfSCeqkGzD%2fjHLkVszp0qm97ZaGH46XtSw%2bK89JrrrfMDyD0pW%2fT7rtWO
http://huff.cssrc.us/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=LB4sGjmVskfZCjGG%2fy3p%2b2MfQjeflY71IIhrthl96wRLQv5mJGBj0R5LeRrJx9qd
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/


http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=hxdRK7eOm7p%2fma8i0CUhlQWdiJ8PRYBDEuQRRI7uLxFu950yYDsuLQie%2b7iU9Zap
http://sd13.senate.ca.gov/

	2016-08-04 7a PCEP Quarter 4 2016 Report Final (3).pdf
	1.0 Preface
	2.0 Executive Summary
	3.0 Electrification
	4.0 Electric Multiple Units
	5.0 Safety
	6.0 Quality
	7.0 Schedule
	8.0 BUDGET AND EXPENDITURES
	9.0 Funding
	10.0 Risk Management
	11.0 Environmental clearance
	12.0 Utility relocation
	13.0 Real Estate
	14.0 Third-Party agreements
	15.0 Community Relations and Outreach
	16.0 DBE PArticipation and Labor Statistics


